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Taunton charter above quoted. The Henna Thorn seems to
have stood at the southernmost angle of Pitminster about
350 yds. WSW. of Widcombe House (OM1).

19. Thanon west on tha Ealdan Dic: °Then west to the
Old Dyke.’

This dyke must have run along the modern line of road on
the S. by. of Pitminster W. of the Henna T horn.

20. Thonne sume hwile andlang thaere Dice : ‘'Then for
some distance along the Dyke.’

21. And thanon north ofer Widan Cumbe (Cumb): ° And
then north over Wide Combe.’

This carries the by. along that N. bend of the S. by. of Pit-
minster on which stands Strawbridge Farm (OM1).

22, Th east (eft) on Fearres Cumbes Heafd (Heafod) :

The orientetion is merely approximate. It is noticeable that
the orientation of this Taunton group of charters is not so good
as that of the charters generally. For the combe see land-
mark 1.

Local Names in Pilminster.

Pitminster. Pipyngminstre, Pipingminstre, B.729, K.1117.
10th cent.
Puprgmynsire, Pippingmynsire, B.770, K.1140. 10th cent.
¢ Church of the Pippings (family of Pippa).’

The building of churches by individuals was not uncommon.
This practice was not by any means always due to piety, but
to the fact that certain profits in the shape of dues, etc., accrued
to the builder.

Widcombe :  Withigeumb, B.476, K.1052. 9th cent. (%)
Wid(an) Cumb, B.729, K.1117 and B.770, K.1140.
10th cent. Either ¢ Wide Combe * or * Willow Combe ’.

Black Brook: Blaam Broc, Blac(an) Broe, B.475, K.1052.
10th cent. : Blac(an) Broc, B.62. Tth cent. (?) ° Black
Brook.’ ‘

Blagdon : Bledone, DB. 1086. Probably AS. Blaec-dun, ‘ Black
Hill °.
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From the road meeting at Howleigh (OMI1) :

Cleansland : 1% fur. NW. by N. Tutsham Hays: 1} fur.
N. by E. Hodley Meadow : { m. NE. by N. Catty Cake :
1% fur. E. Burhill: 31 fur. ENE.

From the road meeting at Lowton (OMI) :

Loughton : field immed. SE. Kitsmoor Orchard : 1} fur.
E. by 8. Elvery: +m. S. by E.

From the road meeting in Blagdon (OM1) :

Shelves : + m. N. by W. Clift Hay: 1 m. SW. ® Fenced
Ground on a Steep Slope.” Higher Charlock: 2% fur. S.
Rexy Piece : 2% fur. S. by E. Possibly * rixy ’, rushy. Toot-
hill Meadow : 3% fur. SE. ° Hill where watch is kept.’

From the church at Pitminster (OM1) :

Madger : 1} fur. SW. Little and Great Deyland: 2}
fur. SE.
From the road meeting at Chelmsine (OM1) :

Chimsey : immed. NE. Hartley Copse : 1 fur. SW. Brook-
hams : 1% fur. E. by N. Northley and Southley : } m. S.
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16. Of, ete. to Wynestane : * From Bacga’s Barrow to Wyn’s
Stone.””

The stone stood probably at the bend in the by. by Tilbury
Farm (OM1).

17.  Of tham Stane to Ruwanbeorge : ° From the Stone to
Rough Barrow (or Hill).’

This was either Lydeard Hill (OM1) or, more probably, a
barrow on it at the NW. angle of the parish.

18.  Of tham Beorge to Ciwichemhamme : * From the Barrow
to (Cwichelm’s ?) Enclosure.”®

The enclosure was probably on the N. by. near Luxborough
Farm (OM1).

19. Of tham Hamme to Collelade :* * From the Enclosure to
the Slade (valley) of the Cole.”

20. Of Collislade adune on strem lo Horspadesforda : * From
the Slade of the Cole down stream to the Ford of the Horse
Path.’

The Slade and stream mentioned are the small valley and
stream on the N. by. of the parish about 1 fur. SE. of Lux-
borough Farm (OM1). The Ford of the Horsepath was where
a road crosses this stream at Lower Aisholt (OML1), at the NE.
angle of the parish.

21.  Of tham Forda uppon straem to Oxenagete : * From the
Ford up stream to the Gate of the Oxen.’

This carries the survey up the stream which forms the N.
part of E. by. of the parish.

I Wyn is probably a shortened form of one of the various names of which it
is the first element.

2 T have assumed that the copyist of the charter has made a mistake here,
and written Cwichem for Cwichelmes.

3 T have taken the form Collislade of 20 as being the more nearly correct.
I thinlk that there cannot be much doubt that Colle or Celli is an example of
a stream name found elzewhere in England.

The river Cole which flows through NE. Worcestershire, E. of Birmingham,
and through Warwickshire, is called Colle in B.455, K.250, and in B.1282,
K.570.

A C'olesburna in Withington, (loucestershire, is mentioned in B.299.

Extant stream-names containing probably the same element are Colborne
in Christchurch, Hants : Colebatch in Bishop's Castle, Shropshire : the river
Cole near Swindon and Coleshill, Wiltshire and Berkshire.
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27. On Hreod Alras: ° To the Reed Alders.’ ;

These were posgibly at the head of the brook on the E. by.
about 5 fur. NE. of East Lydeard (OM1).

28. Of, ete. on Tideford : ‘From the Reed Alders to
‘ Time ”” Ford.”*

The ford was possibly at the point where on the E. by. a
road crosges a brook at Middlebrooks (OM6) about 5 fur. WNW.
of Fennington (OM1).

29.  Of tham Forda adunre on strem to Cunecanforde : © From
the Ford down stream to the Ford of Cunec.’

I am inclined to think that Cunes is the old name of the
stream which forms part of the E. by. of the parish near Lower
Portman Farm (OMI1), and that the ford was close to that
farm.

30. Of, ete. on Cincgesget : * From Cunec Ford to King’s
Gate.’

This gate was probably where a road crosses the E. by. a
short 1 m. of Fitzroy (OM1).

31. Of, ete. on Swuran Apuldran : ° From King’s Gate to
the Sour Appletree.’

This must have been on the E. by. somewhere N. of where
the railway crosses it

32. Of, etec. oth hit cymth eft on Linlege : ° From the Sour
Appletree till it comes once more to Flax Lea.” (See land-
mark 1.)

Various old names on the Bishop’s Liydeard and West Buck-
land boundaries will be found in the great Taunton charter
published in vol. Ixxiii of this journal.

MILVERTON
Milverton is about 6} m. W. of Taunton.
Charter.

B.1116 is a charter recording the grant of 1 hide in aet Mono-
wyrthige by King Eadgar to the thegn Aelfric in A.p. 963.

1 Perhaps a ford which was only usable at certain seasons.
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the 13th century (1200-1250). The title of the charter * Carta
regis Athelwlphi de Dicheszate’. Dichesyaie, suggests again
that the extant copy of the document is a production or a re-
production of the post-Conquest period. ;

The area of the lands granted at Ditcheat is stated at- 25
hides, and at Lottisham 5 hides.

There is also a clause in the grant which, if it really belonged
to the Saxon age, would be, to say the least of it, most unusual :
* he may have power of doing whatever he likes with this land,
whether to keep it, or to exchange it, or even to sell it, or after
his death to leave it to any heir he likes.” This confers a
freedom of ownership which can hardly be associated with
Saxon times.

Survey of Ditcheat.

1. Hrest on Dicheforde on Alum : ° First to Dykeford to the
Alum River.’

2 HEwndlang Stremes on Mereforthesthorn : © Along stream to
the Thorntree at the Boundary Ford ’ (reading ford for forth).

3. Thanen suth on Wirte (read Wyrthe) on an Wei : © Then
south to an outlying Farm to a Track.’

4. Endlang Weies on an Stapel on Hennegraue : ° Along the
Track to a Pole to Birds” Grove.’

5. Thanen on Ranesleighe suthward on Londscher Dich :
‘ Then to Raven’s Lea southward to the Dyke of the Boundary
of the Ploughlands.”’

6.  Endlang Diches to Bru : ° Along the Dyke to (the river)
Brue.’

7. Endlang stremes on Alwm Gemitho® : © Along stream to
the Mouth of (the river) Alham.’

L That landsceary meant a boundary we know. But of the exact nature of
such a boundary we are as yet ignorant. Land, when it stands by itself in
the charters, seems to mean ploughland. While maere and mearc are used
of the ‘ balks ’ or boundaries of individual ploughlands, landscearu was, I am
inclined to conjecture, used of a continuous line of balks of ploughlands which
adjoined lands belonging to a neighbouring land-unit.

2 There are apparently two readings here, semido and gemitho. Birch
rather perversely prefers the former.
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parishes are now. The Lottisham charter says also that this
mead was at Scobbanwyrth, and that accounts for Scobbanworth
being mentioned with Baltonsborough in the Baltonsborough
charter. It would appear to have been the name of the land
between the Bru and the Olan, what is now the 8. end of
Baltonsborough parish.

Local and Field Names.

Hestover’s Walk : field about 3 fur. SW. of Coxbridge.

Starveall : field about 4 fur. SW. of same.

Hoar Leaze : field 1 fur. SHE. of same.

Coxbridge : now the orchard of Burnett's Farm on WNW.
slope of Windmill Hill (OM1).

North Moor : 3 fur. NNE. of Tilham Street (OM1). ¢ Marshy
land.’

Great Wormshill : 1 fur. NE. of same. -

Shawls : field immed. SW. of same.

Lughourne : field immed. E. of Lubborn House (OM6) 1 m.
E. of the church (OMI). Name of the neighbouring
stream.

Muchelney Hill : 3 fur. SSW. of the crossroads in Ham Street
(OM1). May be named from some connection with
Muchelney Abbey. May be independent name °aet
thaere Miclan Ig’, < Great Island °.

Batch Brook Corner: immed. NNE. of Catsham (OM1).
‘ Ridge ’ (?) or, as a small brook flows through Catsham,
AS. baec, © a brook which is dry at certain times ’.

Batch Ground : immed. BE. of same.

Skippets : about 5} fur. ENE of same. House near Basing-
stoke, Hants, of this name.

Sidewoods : about 5 fur. SE. of crossroads at Ham Street
(OM1). Probably * Woods on a slope .

Southover : 3 fur. E. of Tootle Bridge Farm (OM1). ¢ South
Bank or Slope.’



